CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the **Community Safety Scrutiny Committee** held on Thursday, 25th July, 2013 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Councillor H Murray (Chairman)

Councillors C Andrew, M Grant, M Parsons and J Hammond

OTHERS PRESENT

Councillor Les Gilbert – Portfolio Holder Martin Dowle – Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service Brian Magan – Democratic Services, Warrington Borough Council

OFFICERS PRESENT

Abigail Webb – Community Safety Development Manager James Morley – Scrutiny Officer

17 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Cllrs P Nurse, A Barrett, G Merry and J Saunders. Cllr J Hammond attended the meeting as a substitute for Cllr J Saunders.

18 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest

19 WHIPPING DECLARATIONS

There were no declarations of party whip

20 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 20 JUNE 2013

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting on 20 June 2013 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

21 PUBLIC SPEAKING/OPEN SESSION

There were no members of the public wishing to speak

22 ROAD SAFETY

Martin Dowle, the Community and Road Safety Manager for the Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service, presented an oral update on the education and Fire and Rescue Service elements of road safety over the past 12 months. The Road Traffic Act of 1988 placed a responsibility for promoting road safety on local authorities. Cheshire East had commissioned Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service (CFRS) to deliver education on road safety to children in schools at Key Stage 2 (KS2) and Key Stage 4 (KS4) in April 2012.

During the update questions were asked and the following points arose:

- CFRS had a four year contract to deliver road safety education with the option to extend the contact for a further three years. The contract did not cover education for private schools.
- The requirements of the contract were to deliver education on road safety to 90% of the primary and secondary schools in the Borough. CFRS had managed to deliver its road safety course for KS2 pupils to 100% of the primary schools and the KS4 course to 86% of secondary schools meaning 98% of total schools were covered by April 2013. All but one of the secondary schools not in the 86% had received the course since April 2013.
- The Committee suggested that Councillors may be able to influence any school as governors to ensure CFRS was able to deliver the course.
- CFRS had 29 Community Safety Officers dedicated and trained to deliver road safety education. There was no danger of these Officers being called to an emergency during a school visit.
- The training for the school pupils was interactive and involving which helped to increase interest and learning.
- The Council, CFRS and Cheshire Police had a Multiagency Plan for Road Safety which was used to co-ordinated their efforts on education, enforcement and engineering.
- Death and Serious Injury figures for Cheshire East were unchanged from 2011 to 2012 with 12 deaths and 231 serious injuries in each year.
- Accidents involving cyclists had increased however this may have been attributed to the increase in the number of cyclists since the success of British cycling at le Tour de France and London 2012 Olympics.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That Martin Dowle be thanked for attending the meeting.
- 2. That the oral report be noted.
- 3. That the Multiagency Road Safety Plan be distributed to the members of the Committee via email.

23 CHESHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

Brain Magan, Democratic Services Officer from Warrington Borough Council, presented an overview of the Cheshire Police and Crime Panel (PCP). As Warrington was the host authority for the PCP Brain was responsible for organisation the meetings of the PCP. Brain provided a fact sheet with 101 facts about the Cheshire PCP and a presentation on its role and relationship with the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) and other organisations and committees.

During the presentation questions were asked and the following points arose.

- Other than through the ballot box the PCC was held to account by the PCP the Panel acted in the same as a scrutiny committee.
- The Panel was a statutory consultee on the police and crime plan. The Panel was also responsible for reviewing proposed precepts, reviewing the annual report and investigating non-criminal complaints about the PCC.
- The Panel should work in partnership with relevant bodies that deal with police and crime matters locally (e.g. scrutiny committees and community safety partnerships).
- Cheshire East Council had three representatives on the Panel; it was suggested that the reps should consult their fellow councillors to gather intelligence and concerns to use at the Panel or pass down information from the Panel to local members.
- PCP and scrutiny committees should identify issues of mutual interest and concern and select the best forum to investigate those issues to avoid duplication.
- The Chairman of the Committee was a member of the PCP and as such was a link between the two that could help to avoid duplication and promote synergy where the two could work together on local issues.
- Those responsible for reducing crime and disorder should also consider developing links with other sectors such as health. Cocommissioning between PCC and Director of Public Health may help to reduce offending through early intervention and better health and wellbeing outcomes for vulnerable people. This could also apply to Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny and Community Safety Scrutiny.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That Brain Magan be thanked for attending the meeting.
- 2. That the presentation and fact sheet be noted.

24 CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL CRIME PREVENTION

Abigail Webb, Community Safety Development Manager, presented a report on the activities and projects that were being undertaken to reduce crime and disorder in Cheshire East. The main resource for the services was officer time however the service needed to compete for funding from the Police and Crime Commissioner on a yearly basis. The report described six schemes individually in detail however there were many more than had not been included in the report. Abigail discussed each one with the Committee and took questions. The Committee was very pleased with the work of the Community Safety Team and offered to support them in any way possible if required.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That Abigail Webb be thanked for attending the meeting.
- 2. That the report be noted.

25 WORK PROGRAMME

The Committee gave consideration to the work programme.

RESOLVED

That the work programme be noted.

The meeting commenced at 10.30 am and concluded at 12.34 pm

Councillor H Murray (Chairman)